
 
  

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 
 

AGENDA 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, July 15, 2019 - 6:30 p.m. 
Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 
 

Any person who wishes to address the City Council regarding any item listed on this agenda or any other 
matter that is within its subject matter jurisdiction is invited, but not required, to fill out a public meeting 
speaker card and submit it to the city clerk prior to the oral communications portion of the meeting.  The 
purpose of the card is to ensure that speakers' names are correctly recorded in the meeting minutes and, 
where appropriate, to provide contact information for later staff follow-up. 

 
Copies of this agenda may be obtained prior to the meeting in the Lawndale City Hall foyer.  Copies of staff reports or other 
written documentation relating to each agenda item are available for public inspection in the Lawndale City Hall foyer and the 
public library. Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for clarification regarding individual 
agenda items. 
 

This agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
B. CEREMONIALS - Flag Salute and Inspiration 
 
C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 

 
D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments) 

 
E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 

 
F. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
The consent calendar, agenda items 1 through 8, will be considered and acted upon under one motion 
unless a councilmember removes individual items for further council consideration or explanation. 
 
1. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on 

the agenda 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

2. Contract Service Agreement for Additional  Site Assessment and Soil Investigation  
Underground Storage Tank (UST) Project 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the new Contact Service Agreement to 
Ninyo & Moore by expanding the scope of services for total compensation not to exceed 
$6,101. 

 
3. Final Parcel Map No. 73938 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
July 15, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 

 

4. Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended June 30, 2019 
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file. 

 
5. Annual Investment Policy 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution CC-1907-035, reaffirming 
Council Policy Number 80-04 pertaining to the City’s Investment Policy, with minor 
revisions. 
 

6. Consideration of Claim for Damages 
Recommendation: that the City Council reject the claim filed by Adison Carrillo and 
instruct staff to process the appropriate correspondence to the claimant. 
 

7. Accounts Payable Register 
Recommendation: that the City Council adopts Resolution No. CC-1907-036, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $1,036,029.36. 

 
8. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – June 17, 2019 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
9. Update to the Building and Safety Fees for Development 

Recommendation: that the City Council continue the Public Hearing to the August 5, 
2019 City Council meeting. 

 
H. ADMINISTRATION 

 
10. Second Contract Amendment for Solid Waste Request for Proposal Consulting  

Services 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the Contract Services Agreement for 
Solid Waste RFP Consulting Services with HF&H Consultants, LLC, increasing the 
amount $15,000 for a total contract amount not to exceed $135,900; and (b) direct the 
Finance Department to make a budget adjustment to increase General Fund revenue and 
Public Works Administration appropriation in the amounts of $135,900 and $15,000, 
respectively. 

 
11. Cable Commission Dissolution and Creation of the Media and Technology Advisory  

Committee 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the first reading to introduce 
Ordinance No.1162-19, amending Chapter 2.40 of the Municipal Code dissolving the 
Lawndale Cable Commission; and (b) adopt Resolution No. CC-1907-037, removing 
references to the Cable Commission and creating the Media and Technology Advisory 
Committee. 
 

12. League of California Cities Annual Conference 
Recommendation: that the City Council select a delegate and an alternate to represent the 
city at the League of California Cities Annual Conference. 

 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
July 15, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 

 

I. ITEMS FROM COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

13. Mayor/Councilmember Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 

J. CLOSED SESSION 
 
14. Public Employee Performance Evaluation and Compensation 

The City Council will hold a closed session pursuant to Government Code Sections 54957 
and 54957.6(a), to conduct an employee performance evaluation and review 
compensation provided to the City Attorney. 

 
15. Conference with Labor Negotiator 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54957.6, with the city manager, the city attorney and the City's negotiators, regarding 
labor negotiations with Local 1895, Council 36, American Federation of State, County 
and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, representing the City's mid-management and 
classified employees. 

 
K. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 
August 5, 2019 in the Lawndale City Hall council chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California. 

 
It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 
contact the City Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 
 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the agenda 
for the regular meeting of the City Council to be held on July 15, 2019 was posted not less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 



1



2





































3







4













5





























6









7





























































































MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL AND OTHER BODIES REGULAR MEETING 

June 17, 2019 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber, 14717 
Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.  
 
Councilmembers Present: Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem James H. Osborne, 

Councilmember Pat Kearney, Councilmember Daniel Reid, 
Councilmember Bernadette Suarez 

  
Other Participants: City Clerk Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Manager Stephen N. 

Mandoki, City Attorney Tiffany J. Israel, Los Angeles County 
Sheriff's Department Captain Duane Allen, Community Services 
Director Mike Estes, Assistant to the City Manager/Human 
Resources Director Raylette Felton, Municipal Services Director 
Michael Reyes, Finance Director Marla Pendleton, Community 
Development Director Sean Moore, Assistant City Clerk Matthew 
Ceballos and approximately 20 audience members. 

 
B. CEREMONIALS 

 
Councilmember Suarez led the flag salute and Pastor Bob Dobranski, The Way to God Church, 
provided the inspiration. 
 

C. PRESENTATIONS 
 

1. 2019 Rotary Club Firefighter and Deputy of the Year Awards 
Presented to Firefighter Alex Rodriguez and Deputy Paul Saldana 

 
Dr. Betsy Hamilton, Rotary Club and Lawndale School District Superintendent, presented the 
Deputy of the Year Award to Deputy Paul Saldana and Firefighter Year Award to Firefighter 
Alex Rodriguez. 

 
2. Recognition of Service to the City of Lawndale 

Presented to Captain John P. Burcher and Commander April Tardy 
 

Mayor Pullen-Miles and the City Council presented the recognition of service awards to Captain 
John P. Burcher and Commander April Tardy. 

 
Commander Tardy and Captain Burcher spoke about their time serving the Lawndale 
community. 

 
D. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 

 
Captain Duane Allen summarized recent law enforcement activities. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Osborne asked a technical question regarding a certain crimes charged as a felony, 
Captain Allen clarified. 

8 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
June 17, 2019 
Page 2 of 7 
 
 
E. ITEMS FROM CITY CLERK 

 
City Clerk Rhonda Hofmann Gorman spoke about the City Council meetings being live streamed 
and archived on YouTube. 

 
F. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
• Charles Rundle, Resident, inquired about the results of the left turn light study on Manhattan 

Beach Boulevard and Hawthorne Boulevard as well as the progress of the vacant lot at the same 
location. He went on to discuss road conditions throughout the City and the need for repair. 
 

• Randal Abram, Resident, thanked City staff for live streaming City Council meetings on 
YouTube, he then spoke about illegal firework issues throughout the City and  recommended 
different approaches in the handling of illegal fireworks use and undercover police vehicles. 

 
• Pam London, Resident, spoke about weed abatement and other aesthetic issues involving homes 

throughout the City.  She then went on to speak about illegal fireworks signs and fireworks sales 
throughout the City. 

 
G. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 

 
The City Council and staff responded generally to the comments, but did not request placement of 
any issues on a future meeting agenda. 

 
H. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
3. Landscaping Maintenance Services Agreement 

Recommendation:  that the City Council approve the Contract Services Agreement with 
South Bay Landscape Services, for an annual amount of $225,000 for the term beginning 
July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022. 

 
4. First Amendment to the Citywide Tree Trimming Services Agreement 

Recommendation:  that the City Council approve the First Amendment to the Tree 
Trimming Services Agreement with South Bay Landscape Services, for an annual amount 
of $166,490 for the term of the Agreement from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022. 

 
5. Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Appropriation Limit 

Recommendation:  that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-1906-034 approving 
the Appropriation Limit for fiscal year 2019-2020. 

 
6. Letter of Support for Assembly Bill 1694 Expanding the Territory of the San  

Gabriel and Lower Los Angeles Rivers and Mountains Conservancy (RMC) to 
include the Dominguez Channel Watershed and Santa Catalina Island 
Recommendation:  that the City Council authorize staff to submit a letter of support for 
Assembly Bill 1694. 

 
7. South Bay Center for Dispute Resolution Agreement 2019-2022 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
June 17, 2019 
Page 3 of 7 
 
 

Recommendation:  that the City Council approve the Agreement with the South Bay 
Center for Dispute Resolution with a contract sum of $41,382.00 and a 5% contingency 
for a total not to exceed $43,451.10. 

 
8. Memorandum of Understanding to Accept Local Return Funds for Participation in  

the National Transit Database Reporting Program for FY 2015-16 
Recommendation:  that the City Council (a) approve the Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with the Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority to accept 
$35,029.00 of Proposition A local return funds; and (b) authorize the Mayor and City 
Manager to execute the MOU on behalf of the City. 

 
9. County of Los Angeles Sheriff’s Department Law Enforcement Services Agreement  

and Service Level Authorization 
Recommendation:  that the City Council (a) approve the Municipal Law Enforcement 
Services Agreement for 5 years with the County of Los Angeles Sheriff’s Department 
and authorize the Mayor to execute it on behalf of the City and (b) authorize the City 
Manager to execute the Service Level Authorization on behalf of the City. 

 
10. Animal Control Services 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the City-County Municipal Services 
Agreement with the County of Los Angeles Department of Animal Care and Control; and 
(b) authorize the Mayor to execute it on behalf of the City; and (c) authorize the City 
Manager to execute the Service Level Request on Behalf of the City. 
 

11. First Amendment to the Agreement for Sales, Use and Transactions Tax Audit  
Services between City and Hinderliter, de Llamas (HdL) and Associates 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the First Amendment to Agreement 
for Sales, Use and Transactions Tax Services; and (b) authorize the City Manager to 
execute the Amendment on behalf of the City. 

 
12. Accounts Payable Register 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-1906-032, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $805,634.39. 

 
13. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – June 3, 2019 

  Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
 

14. Federally Funded Employment and Job Training – South Bay Workforce 
Development Board Activities Summary 
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the report. 

 
REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
 
15. Minutes of the Successor Agency Meeting – December 17, 2018 

Recommendation: that the Board approves. 
 

LAWNDALE HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 

file://datasrv01/common/CITY%20CLERK%20DEPARTMENT/DRAFT%20Agendas/7%206-04-18.pdf


Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
June 17, 2019 
Page 4 of 7 
 
 

16. Minutes of the Housing Authority Regular Meeting – June 4, 2018 
Recommendation: that the Commissioners approve. 

 
LAWNDALE CABLE USAGE CORPORATION 
 
17. Minutes of the Cable Usage Corporation Board of Directors Meeting – June 4, 2018 
 Recommendation: that the Directors approve. 
 
A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Osborne to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 
 

I. ADMINISTRATION 
 
18. FY 18/19 Annual Street Improvement Project - Authorization to Bid 

Recommendation:  that the City Council (a) adopt the plans and specifications, approve 
the project scope of work, and authorize staff to advertise the project for bids; (b) 
authorize staff to allocate an amount of $69,634 from General Fund (100-310-700.269- 
Hawthorne Blvd. Recondition 163rd St. to 168th St) to the Road Maintenance and Rehab 
Alleys FY 17/18 project; (c) authorize staff to allocate an amount of $71,650 from 
General Fund (100-310-700.271-RM&R-Alleys) to the Road Maintenance and Rehab 
Alleys FY 17/18 project; (d) authorize staff to allocate an amount of $60,000 from 
General Fund (100-310-700.267- Jane Adams Parking Lot Improvement) to the Road 
maintenance and Rehab Various Streets FY 18/19 project; (e) approve a twenty percent 
(20%) contingency of $117,418 for Grevillea Avenue Improvement project and Road 
Maintenance & Rehab-Alleys FY l7/18 to avoid project delays and facilitate timely 
project completion; and (f) approve a twenty percent (20%) contingency of $116,000 for 
Road Maintenance & Rehab Various Streets FY18/19 to avoid project delays and 
facilitate timely project completion. 

 
City Manager Stephen Mandoki reported on the proposed FY 18/19 Annual Street Improvement 
Project. 
 
Councilmember Kearney inquired about the Jane Adams parking lot improvement obligation of 
repair and suggested splitting costs with the school district. 
 
A dialogue ensued between City Council and staff regarding the parking lot improvement and 
other areas that needed repair. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Reid to adopt the plans and specifications, approve the project 
scope of work, and authorize staff to advertise the project for bids, authorize staff to allocate 
an amount of $69,634 from General Fund (100-310-700.269 Hawthorne Blvd. Recondition 
163rd St. to 168th St) to the Road Maintenance and Rehab Alleys FY 17/18 project, authorize 
staff to allocate an amount of $71,650 from General Fund (100-310-700.271-RM&R-Alleys) 
to the Road Maintenance and Rehab Alleys FY 17/18 project, authorize staff to allocate an 
amount of $60,000 from General Fund (100-310-700.267- Jane Adams Parking Lot 
Improvement) to the Road maintenance and Rehab Various Streets FY 18/19 project, approve 
a twenty percent (20%) contingency of $117,418 for Grevillea Avenue Improvement project 
and Road Maintenance & Rehab-Alleys FY l7/18 to avoid project delays and facilitate timely 

file://datasrv01/common/CITY%20CLERK%20DEPARTMENT/DRAFT%20Agendas/8%206-04-18.pdf
file://datasrv01/common/CITY%20CLERK%20DEPARTMENT/DRAFT%20Agendas/9%206-04-18.pdf


Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
June 17, 2019 
Page 5 of 7 
 
 

project completion, and approve a twenty percent (20%) contingency of $116,000 for Road 
Maintenance & Rehab Various Streets FY18/19 to avoid project delays and facilitate timely 
project completion, was seconded by Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 
 
19. Lawndale Beat Fixed-Route Transportation Agreement 

Recommendation:  that the City Council approve a three year Contract Agreement 
between the City of Lawndale and MV Transportation, Inc. for Lawndale Beat Fixed-
route Transportation Services in the amount of $491,175.00 annually for a total contract 
amount of $1,473,513.00 for three years. 
 

City Manager Stephen Mandoki reported on the proposed Lawndale Beat Fixed-Route 
Transportation Agreement. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Brett Baum, Transportation Concepts, inquired about the proposal requirements, the scoring 
criteria of the proposal, and cost assessments made by staff. 
 
Mike Estes, Community Development Director, responded to the questions and explained why 
the agreement was awarded to MV Transportation, Inc., although they didn’t not exactly match 
the proposal criteria. 
 
A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Osborne to approve a three year Contract Agreement between 
the City of Lawndale and MV Transportation, Inc. for Lawndale Beat Fixed-route 
Transportation Services in the amount of $491,175.00 annually for a total contract amount of 
$1,473,513.00 for three years, was seconded by Councilmember Kearney and carried by a vote 
of 5-0. 
 
CITY COUNCIL/REDEVELOPMENT SUCCESSOR AGENCY/LAWNDALE HOUSING 
AUTHORITY/ LAWNDALE CABLE USAGE CORPORATION 
 
20. Annual Municipal Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20 

Recommendation:  that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-1906-033 which 
adopts the Citywide Budget for FY 2019-20. 

 
City Manager Stephen Mandoki reported on the proposed Annual Municipal Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2019-20.  He went on to note the minor changes: the removal of the drone purchase; removal 
of the “Christmas with a Cop” event; and reduction of Block Grant funding. 
 
A motion by Councilmember Kearney to adopt Resolution No. CC-1906-033 which adopts the 
Citywide Budget for FY 2019-20 was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Osborne and carried by a 
vote of 5-0. 
 

J. ITEMS FROM COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

21. Mayor/Councilmember Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
June 17, 2019 
Page 6 of 7 
 
 

Councilmember Reid attended the Solid Waste Subcommittee meeting and the Health, Safety and 
Pet Fair event. 
 
Councilmember Kearney attended the Solid Waste Subcommittee, the Health, Safety and Pet Fair 
event, and the Sherriff’s Liability Trust Fund Oversight Committee meeting 
 
Councilmember Suarez attended the Health, Safety and Pet Fair event, the League of California 
Cities L.A. division meeting, and the Technology and Social Media Subcommittee. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Osborne attended the Health, Safety and Pet Fair event. 
 
Mayor Pullen-Miles attended the Health, Safety and Pet Fair event, the League of California Cities 
L.A. division meeting, and the Technology and Social Media Subcommittee. 

 
K. CLOSED SESSION 

 
At 7:34 p.m. the City Council entered into closed session. 
 
22. Conference with Labor Negotiator 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54957.6, with the City Manager, the City Attorney and the City's negotiators, regarding 
labor negotiations with Local 1895, Council 36, American Federation of State, County 
and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, representing the City's mid-management and 
classified employees. 
 

23. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.9(d)(4), because the City is considering whether to initiate litigation in one (1) 
case. 
 

24. Public Employee Performance Evaluation and Compensation 
The City Council will hold a closed session with the City's personnel officer, the City 
Manager, pursuant to Government Code Sections 54957 and 54957.6(a), to conduct an 
employee performance evaluation and compensation provided to the City Attorney. 

 
LAWNDALE HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 
25. Conference with Real Property Negotiator 

The Authority will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 
54956.8, to enable the commissioners to consider negotiations and to give direction to its 
negotiators regarding that certain real property, 4019 W. 169th Street, APN 4074-016-
015.  The Authority's real property negotiators, its executive director and housing 
director, will seek direction from the commissioners regarding the price and terms for this 
property. 

 
At 8:23 p.m. the City Council entered back into open session. 
 



Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 
June 17, 2019 
Page 7 of 7 
 
 

City Attorney Tiffany Israel reported the City Council met in Closed Session to discuss the 
four items listed on the Closed Session agenda. The City Council was updated on the item 
numbers 22, 24 and 25 and there was no reportable action taken.  On item number 23, the 
City Council unanimously voted to authorize the initiation of litigation against the owners of 
14410 and 14412 Mansel Avenue, Lawndale, CA 90260. 
 

L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to conduct, the mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:23 p.m. 

 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 
 
Approved: 7/15/2019 
 



9



10















11











Resolution No. CC-1907-037 
Amending City Council Policy 93-09, 94-09, 97-11 and 99-11 

RESOLUTION NO. CC-1907-037 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 

AMENDING CITY COUNCIL POLICY NOS. 93-09, 94-09, 97-11 AND 99-11, IN 
CONJUNCTION WITH THE DISSOLUTION OF THE CABLE COMMISSION AND THE 

CREATION OF THE MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lawndale has established a Council Policy Manual 
to set forth and identify policies of the City Council which may not otherwise be established in 
ordinances of the City, or which are restated to further amplify existing City policy; and 

WHEREAS, all policies included in the Council Policy Manual are adopted by resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council is concurrently dissolving the Cable Commission and transferring 
the responsibilities of the commission to a new entity; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council desires the establishment of a Media and Technology Advisory 
Committee, which committee is in line with the City Council’s goals and objectives for community input 
on information, media, and communications technology for the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that there is a need to amend previous policies 
pertaining to the Cable Commission and due to the creation of the Media and Technology Advisory 
Committee. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

SECTION 2. That the City Council approves the amended and restated Policy No. 93-09, entitled 
“Commissions, Committees and Boards - General Policies ", attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit "A". 

SECTION 3. That the City Council approves the amended and restated Policy No. 94-09, entitled 
“Policies Pertaining to City Council Formed Committees ", attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit "B". 

SECTION 4. That the City Council approves the amended and restated Policy No. 97-11, entitled 
“Lawndale Community Television Policies and Guidelines ", attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit "C". 

SECTION 5. That the City Council approves the amended and restated Policy No. 99-11, entitled 
“Lawndale Community Television Sponsorship Policy ", attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit "D". 



Resolution No. CC-1907-037 
Amending City Council Policy 93-09, 94-09, 97-11 and 99-11 

SECTION 6.  The City Clerk's Department is directed to enter said updated policies into the Council 
Policy Manual upon the effective date of this resolution. 

SECTION 7. This resolution shall take effect 30 days after the passage and adoption of Ordinance 
1162-19. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of July, 2019. 

_______________________________ 
Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

State of California ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale ) 

I, Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City 
Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-1907-037 at 
a regular meeting of said Council held on the 15th day of July, 2019, by the following roll call vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
James H. Osborne, Mayor Pro Tem 
Pat Kearney 
Daniel Reid 
Bernadette Suarez 

_______________________________ 
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
Tiffany J. Israel, City Attorney 



Council Policy No. 93-09 
Page 1 

COUNCIL POLICY 

SUBJECT: 
Commissions, Committees and Boards - General 
Policies 

POLICY NO.:  93-09 DATE ADOPTED: 
5/4/09… 
10/6/14 
8/21/17 
7/15/2019 

AUTHORITY: 
Resolution No. CC-0905-030… 
Resolution No. CC-1410-056 
Resolution No. CC-1708-040 
Resolution No. CC-1907-037 

PURPOSE: 

In their role as advisory bodies to the City Council, and particularly when authorized to take independent 
action, the City’s commissions, committees and boards directly impact the lives of the community’s 
residents and business people.  Therefore, it is the City Council’s desire to establish certain policies 
pertaining to the conduct of appointees in their capacity as City of Lawndale public officials.  This policy 
does not apply to ad hoc committees not subject to the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act. 

POLICY: 

I. General Duties of City Commissions, Committees and Boards

Compliance with Laws and Regulations 
It shall be the duty of all members of commissions, committees and boards to take an oath of office, as 
prescribed by state law, as a condition of assuming office.  Members are governed by the provisions of 
the Ralph M. Brown Act, state and city conflict of interest laws and regulations, and state and city ethics 
laws, and shall comport themselves accordingly. 

Advisory Body Handbook 
To ensure that members receive appropriate instruction and guidance regarding pertinent state and local 
laws, City staff shall develop and maintain a handbook for commissioners, committee members and 
board members subject to the approval of the City Attorney.  Such handbook shall summarize the 
responsibilities, prerogatives, and duties of each advisory body, the duties of the members, and provide 
summaries of state and municipal laws and regulations governing the performance of those duties 
(including summaries of the Ralph M. Brown Act, the Political Reform Act, the Lawndale Code of 
Ethics, conflict of interest laws, the California Tort Claims Act [as that may apply to actions of 
commissioners, committee or board members], and a periodic update on important cases having bearing 
on the duties of public officials). 

Members of commissions, committees and boards are expected to periodically review such handbook, 
familiarize themselves with the information contained therein, and comport themselves in conformance 
with the advice contained therein.  Where necessary, members may consult with the City Manager (or 
his or her designee) regarding questions about a proposed course of action or conduct which may be 
implicated by the handbook, or questions regarding the interpretations of handbook.  As necessary, the 
City Manager (or his or her designee) may consult with the Mayor, members of or the entire City Council 
(as allowed by law), the City Attorney or City staff to seek answers to questions or guidance on actions, 

EXHIBIT A



Council Policy No. 93-09 
Page 2 

conduct, or proposed actions or courses of conduct, or interpretations of the handbook raised by a 
member. 
 
Ethics Training 
Pursuant to Government Code section 53235, the city will conduct an ethics training class for advisory 
body members who receive compensation for their services or reimbursement of expenses incurred while 
conducting city business.  Such training will occur within 90 days after the start of each new term of 
office, and shall be conducted by the city attorney's office or other person licensed to practice law in 
California and knowledgeable about state ethics laws.  
 
II. Background Checks 
 
It shall be the duty of each newly appointed commissioner, committee member or board member to 
submit to a background check upon appointment or reappointment, except that minors shall be exempt 
from this requirement.  Such a background check shall be the same as that conducted for new employees 
and/or volunteers, and may shall consist of a: 
 

• Criminal history check 
• Credit check history (in accordance with the requirements of Labor Code section 1024.5(a), only 

if the advisory body member will have access to confidential/proprietary information or will be 
authorized to transfer funds, enter into financial contracts or be named signatory.)  

 
The background check shall be conducted by City staff in conjunction prior to City Council ratification 
of with the processing of appointments to commissions, committees and boards.  Staff shall review 
results of the background investigation, and make a recommendation to the City Council on such results, 
if considered warranted by the City Manager.  Background check reports are confidential records and 
shall be treated accordingly. 
 
III. Compensation 
 
Members of city commissions shall receive stipends for meetings attended as described below: 
 
Commission Stipend Amount per Meeting 
Planning Commission $50, not to exceed $100/month 
Parks, Recreation and Social Services Commission $50, not to exceed $100/month 
Cable Commission $30 
 
Commissioners may receive reimbursement for necessary travel and other expenses incurred in the 
performance of an official duty when such expenditures are first authorized by the City Council. 
 
Members of city committees and boards shall not receive a meeting stipend, nor shall they receive 
reimbursement for expenses. 
 



Council Policy No. 94-09 
Page 1 

COUNCIL POLICY 

SUBJECT: 
Policies Pertaining to City Council Formed 
Committees  

POLICY NO.:  94-09 DATE ADOPTED: 
5/4/09… 
7/7/14 
10/6/14 
7/6/15 
8/21/17 
7/15/19 

AUTHORITY: 
Resolution No. CC-0905-031… 
Resolution No. CC-1407-032 
Resolution No. CC-1410-056 
Resolution No. CC-1507-030 
Resolution No. CC-1708-039 
Resolution No. CC-1907-037 

PURPOSE: 

1) To state policies pertaining to committees formed by the City Council which are not contained
in state laws and regulations, the Lawndale Municipal Code and other written City policies.

2) To state policies which are unique to individual committees.

POLICY: 

COMMITTEES GENERALLY 

Unless prescribed otherwise in this policy, the following policies shall pertain to all committees that are 
formed by the City Council: 

Term:  Committee members shall serve a two-year term, unless earlier terminated as provided in 
Lawndale Municipal Code Chapter 2.40.  Except as hereinafter described, the term of each member shall 
commence on March 1 of each odd-numbered year and terminate two years later on February 28 of the 
succeeding odd-numbered year. 

Meetings:  The proceedings of the committee shall be conducted in accordance with its bylaws or, in the 
absence of adopted bylaws, in accordance with the City's Manual of Procedural Guidelines for the 
Conduct of City Council Meetings. 

BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE (BC) 

Purpose of the Committee:  The purposes of the Beautification Committee are as follows: 

• Sponsor a "Clean Up Week" activity;
• Sponsor holiday decoration competition(s);
• Sponsor a program of awards for recognition of homes with significantly improved appearances;
• Sponsor a program of awards for recognition of businesses with significantly improved appearances;
• Develop a beautification program in conjunction with City-sponsored community functions;
• Participate in the City's Art in Public Places Program as provided in Council Policy No. 88-06; and
• Any other purposes which the City Council may from time to time assign.

EXHIBIT B



   Council Policy No. 94-09 
Page 2 

Composition and Qualifications:.  The committee shall consist of seven members, eighteen (18) years of 
age or older.  To qualify for appointment, applicants must have resided in Lawndale for at least thirty 
consecutive days prior to submitting the written application. 
 
SENIOR CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE (SCAC) 
 
Purpose of the Committee:  The primary function of the committee shall be to advise the Parks, 
Recreation and Social Services Commission on matters relating to senior citizen programs and needs in 
the City of Lawndale. 
 
Composition and qualifications:  The committee shall be comprised of 12 individuals, 55 years of age 
or older.  Committee members shall reside (a) within the city of Lawndale; or (b) participate in the City's 
senior citizen program and reside within any of those cities commonly known as the South Bay Cities; 
specifically, the cities of Carson, El Segundo, Gardena, Hawthorne, Hermosa Beach, Inglewood, Lomita, 
Manhattan Beach, Palos Verdes Estates, Rancho Palos Verdes, Redondo Beach, Rolling Hills, Rolling 
Hills Estates, or Torrance; or (c) participate in the City's senior citizen program and reside within the 
unincorporated portion of Los Angeles County known as El Camino Village. 
 
One member of the Parks, Recreation and Social Services Commission shall serve as an ex-officio 
member of the Senior Citizen Advisory Committee. 
 
MEDIA AND TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY COMMITTEE (MTAC) 
 
Purpose of the Committee:  The purposes of the Media and Technology Advisory Committee are as 
follows: 
 

• Reviewing and commenting on the current use of technology and service approaches 
 

• Providing feedback on the City's future technology plans 
 

• Assisting City staff in exploring the feasibility of new technology 
 

• Serving as informed communicators to others in the community of current policies, activities, 
and plans of the City of Lawndale 

 
• And implementing the Lawndale Community Television Policies and Guidelines and Lawndale 

Community Television Sponsorship Policy as set forth in City Council Policies 97-11 and 99-
11, respectively, formerly the duties/responsibilities of the Cable Commission: 
 

1. Make recommendations regarding Lawndale community cable television programming; 
2. Develop and recommend a promotion plan to enhance channel usage and viewership; 
3. Review effectiveness of outreach efforts; 
4. Create maximum interest in local events, people, place and issues via community cable  

television; 
5. Provide Lawndale residents, businesses and organizations an opportunity to produce and  

participate in community television; 
6. Encourage the education of Lawndale students in community television programming and  

production; 
 



   Council Policy No. 94-09 
Page 3 

Composition and Qualifications: The committee shall consist of five members, eighteen (18) years of 
age or older.  To qualify for appointment, applicants must have resided in Lawndale for at least thirty 
consecutive days prior to submitting the written application.  No technology experience is necessary to 
apply, although it is preferable. Applicants are selected on the basis of individual interest, experience, 
expertise, and ability to provide objective feedback and input to City staff. 
 
Meeting Schedule:  The committee shall meet no less than once every 3 months (quarterly). 
 
YOUTH ADVISORY COMMITTEE (YAC) 
 
Purpose of the Committee:  The committee shall be an advisory body to the City Council on matters 
relating to youth and teen programs and activities.  When requested by the City Council, the Committee 
shall identify the needs of youth and teens and propose new programs intended to meet those needs.  The 
Committee shall periodically review existing programs and shall report its conclusions and recommend 
actions by the City Council. 
 
Composition and Qualifications:  The committee shall consist of seven (7) Lawndale residents in grades 
six through 12, who are 18 years of age or less.  To qualify for appointment, members must submit an 
Application for Appointment to the Youth Advisory Committee to the city clerk.  If the applicant is a 
minor, a parent or legal guardian must sign the application.   
 
Term of Office:  Each appointed member shall serve a two-year term beginning October 1 of each even-
numbered year and ending September 30 of the succeeding even-numbered year. 
 
Other Committee Activities:  The committee members will be encouraged to assist in the planning and 
organizing of and attend youth and teen events planned for Lawndale residents. 
 
Meeting Schedule:  The committee shall meet no less than once per month. 
 
 



Council Policy No. 97-11 
Page 1 

COUNCIL POLICY 

SUBJECT: 
Lawndale Community Television Policies and 
Guidelines 

POLICY NO.:  97-11 DATE ADOPTED: 
6/20/11 
7/15/2019 

AUTHORITY: 
Resolution No. CC-1106-047 
Resolution No. CC-1907-037 

I. PURPOSE

The City of Lawndale's Community Television is a source for informing the Lawndale
community of city issues, programs, events and services, and to increase their knowledge and
level of participation on the various services and functions performed by their local
government. Lawndale's Community Television is viewed over channel 3 and channel 22 on
Time Warner Cable, channel 3 and channel 29 on Verizon FiOS and channel 99 on AT&T
U-Verse on a 24/7 schedule. The City of Lawndale's policies relating to Lawndale Community
Television are designed and implemented to comply with state and federal law and to maintain,
develop and implement appropriate programming, as well as to allow for technical and
broadcast improvements as needed or desired.

II. INTENT

(a) To identify and establish the criteria for appropriate government programming.

(b) To define and establish policies for the branding and use of the City of Lawndale's
Community Television (Time Warner channel 3 and channel 22, channel 3 and channel
29 on Verizon FiOS and AT&T channel 99).

(c) To identify and encourage the use of new and emerging media technologies and to best
position the City's Community Television and the content provided through it, so as to
effectively serve the public's information needs.

III. DEFINITIONS

(a) Branding:  On-going efforts by the City to identify, promote and improve awareness of
Government access television programming content.

(b) Grant:  Funding awarded on a discretionary basis by the Lawndale Cable
CommissionCity Council to produce non-commercial community related programming.
This award provides funding for individuals or community groups to produce
programming as approved by the Lawndale Cable CommissionCity Council and must
comply with these Policies and Guidelines. The grant monies awarded is to aid and/or
supplement the costs related to production.

(c) Lawndale CityTV:  A channel branding designation for video programming on the
City of Lawndale's government access channel. This content will be aired on channel 3

EXHIBIT C



Council Policy No. 97-11 
Page 2 

on Time Warner Cable and Verizon FiOS cable systems in order to more clearly, 
consistently and effectively communicate the purpose of Lawndale Community 
Television over multiple systems. AT&T U-Verse system utilizes a menu driven 
channel selection system on channel 99 for all PEG access channels. Any additional 
video service providers shall provide an appropriate channel and number in compliance 
with the State of California's Digital Infrastructure and Video Competition Act of 2007. 

 
(d) Lawndale Community Television:  Government access television serving the 

residents of Lawndale and includes both Lawndale CityTV and the Lawndale 
CommunityTV. 

 
(e) Lawndale CommunityTV:  A channel with an electronic community bulletin board 

composed of graphical, text and media based content and Government Agency 
Programs. This content will air on channel 22 in the Time Warner Cable system and on 
channel 29 in the Verizon FiOS cable system. AT&T U-Verse system utilizes a menu 
driven channel selection system on channel 99 for all PEG access channels. Any 
additional video service providers shall provide an appropriate channel and number in 
compliance with the State of California's Digital Infrastructure and Video Competition 
Act of 2007. 

 
(f) P.E.G. Access Channels:  Public, educational and governmental access channels. 
 
(g) Sponsorship Policy:  The Lawndale Community Television Sponsorship Policy 

adopted by the Lawndale City Council by resolution. 
 
IV. TYPES OF PROGRAMMING 
 

(a) Lawndale CityTV:  Programming aired on Lawndale CityTV will fall into one of the 
following programming categories, listed in order of priority: 

 
(i) Emergency:  Emergency programming includes emergency operations for 

natural or man-made disasters, weather phenomena, poison prevention, first aid, 
and the like.  

 
(ii) Public Meetings:  Live and pre-recorded public meetings of the City Council 

will be aired. Redevelopment Agency, Housing Authority, Cable Usage 
Corporation, Planning Commission, Parks & Recreation and Social Services 
Commission and various other appointed committee or board meetings may be 
aired based on approval from City Council. Live public meetings will be aired 
gavel-to-gavel and will not be edited nor subject to editorial comment. The City 
is not responsible for any statements made during public meetings. For playback 
purposes, public meetings that include long delays for recesses or closed 
sessions may be edited but only the recesses will be edited out or any other 
editing as required by law or FCC regulations. Public forums or symposiums 
which are not a matter of public record, and/or in which a quorum of elected 
officials do not attend and/or vote may be edited for playback when the program 
is intended for (and is presented as) portions or highlights of the meeting. 
Broadcast coverage of a meeting's procedures should be objective and should 
not portray anyone in a particularly negative or unfavorable manner.  



Council Policy No. 97-11 
Page 3 

 
(iii) City Programs:  City programs may include any program produced, organized or 

sponsored by the City, the Lawndale Cable Usage Corporation or the Lawndale 
Media and Technology Advisory CommitteeCable Commission. Additionally, 
programming produced by the City or a City paid vendor, including programs 
for and about City departments, issues related to City government or the 
Lawndale community, activities and events including local sporting events, or 
programs produced by individuals or organizations that are provided City funds 
including a grant from the Lawndale Cable CommissionCity Council, CDBG 
funds or other funding sources are City programs. City programs shall also 
include any event approved in advance by the City Council as a City program.  

 
(iv) Government Agency Programs:  Programs submitted by other governmental 

agencies, including local school districts, local, county, state or federal agencies 
that are of general interest to the residents of the City of Lawndale may be aired 
if said programs comply with these guidelines.  

 
(v) Outside Programming:  Pre-recorded material for playback including programs 

offered on a variety of topics regarding government or economic issues or other 
topics believed to be of interest to the community and which are deemed 
educational, informational, non-partisan and non-political in nature. This may 
include shows affiliated with or obtained through the States of California and 
Nevada Chapter of the National Association of Telecommunication Offices and 
Advisors, (SCAN-NATOA). Programming must comply with the policies set-
forth in these guidelines.  

 
(b) Lawndale CommunityTV:  Programming aired on the Lawndale CommunityTV shall 

include the following:  
 

(i) Electronic Bulletin Board Messages and Public Service Announcements: 
Content includes graphical and text based messages, video based messages, RSS 
feeds of relevant information, webcams and other future video or media sources 
related to City activities, programs, services and events. Additionally, messages 
from other local, regional, state and federal government agencies are 
permissible. Other relevant messages from non-profit corporations, service clubs 
and organizations, local and regional educational agencies and institutions are 
permissible. Messages recognizing Lawndale Community Television sponsors 
are also permissible. Editing by city staff to provide clarity, improve readability 
and maximize utilization of pages may be required without the consent of the 
advertiser. 

 
(ii) Government Agency Programs:  Programs submitted by other governmental 

agencies, including local school districts, local, county, state or federal agencies 
that are of general interest to the residents of the City of Lawndale may be aired 
if said programs comply with these guidelines.  

 
(c) Scheduling:  The Cable Television Supervisor shall schedule programming in 

accordance with the priorities as listed in subsection (a) above and shall further 



Council Policy No. 97-11 
Page 4 

schedule programs to maximize viewer interest. The Cable Television Supervisor shall 
schedule all programming on a non-discriminatory basis.  

 



Council Policy No. 97-11 
Page 5 

V. PROGRAMMING APPROVAL 
 

Any proposed programming must meet the programming restrictions criteria of section IV 
above and must be authorized in accordance with the following.  
 
(a) Requests to Air Programming: 
 

(i) Any request to air programming must be authorized by the City Manager or 
his/her designee, or the City Council when appropriate.  Any decision of the 
City Manager may be appealed in accordance with the Grievance Procedure at 
section IX(a) below. As the sole and exclusive programmer of Lawndale 
Community Television, the City reserves the right to review all proposed 
programming to determine compliance with these guidelines and objectives. The 
City also reserves the right to assess any proposed programming based on 
timeliness. Any program under consideration may be accepted as presented, may 
be turned down completely, or may be given conditional approval. In the case of 
a conditional approval, the program may be required to be edited in accordance 
with policies. Any significant departure from the policies established herein or 
city past practice is subject to authorization by the Lawndale City Council. 

 
(ii) Program content, complaints, customer service, scheduling and playback will be 

managed by the Cable Television Division in accordance with these Policies and 
Guidelines. 

 
(iii) Programming requested through the Lawndale Cable Commission'sCity 

Council’s grant application process, is approved at the discretion of the 
Lawndale Cable CommissionCity Council. Individuals or community 
organizations may submit grant applications to develop and produce community 
related television programming to air on Lawndale Community Television. 
Programming approved for production by the Media and Technology Advisory 
CommitteeCable Commission will be produced by and in conjunction with the 
Cable Television Division. Cable Television Division staff will be available to 
assist with budgeting and staffing for a production and subsequent presentation 
to the Media and Technology Advisory CommitteeCable Commission. 

 
(b) Bulletin Board Messages: 
 

(i) Any public service messages to be displayed on Lawndale CommunityTV must 
be submitted in writing, and must be submitted at least three working days prior 
to the requested start date. Qualifying messages may be emailed, mailed or hand 
delivered to the Cable Television Division. No announcements will be taken 
over the phone, except in the case of an emergency.  

 
(ii) All messages submitted must be approved by the City Manager or his/her 

designee, or the Cable Television Division when appropriate. All messages must 
comply with Section VIII Programming Restrictions. 

 
(iii) Messages should be concise, and should contain basic information concerning 

what, when, where, and how. Messages may be edited for time and space 



Council Policy No. 97-11 
Page 6 

consideration as determined by the Cable Television Supervisor. Every effort 
will be made to include all vital information and maintain the spirit of the 
message. 

 
(iv) All submitted messages must be accompanied by the name of the submitting 

organization or department, the name and phone number of a contact person, 
and whether or not that information is to appear in the message. Submissions 
must include desired start and end dates.  

 
(v) Receipt of a public service message does not in any way guarantee its airing.  
 

(c) Emergency Broadcasts:  All emergency programming shall be authorized by the City 
Manager, or in his/her absence the acting manager in charge or in his/her absence the 
Cable Television Supervisor. Emergency programming may only be originated by city, 
county, state or federal departments including police, public works, fire or other 
emergency service personnel. Under no circumstances will access for emergency 
communications be granted to anyone who does not have the proper authority to initiate 
emergency procedures. 
 

VI. COMMUNITY ACCESS GRANTS 
 

(a) Purpose: 
 

(i) The Lawndale Cable CommissionCity Council approves a limited number of 
grants to individuals and community groups to aid in the production of non-
commercial programming to be aired on Lawndale CityTV.  

 
(ii) Grants may be used for production expenses such as: city staff time 

reimbursement, special sets and props, copyright or royalty fees, rental of 
special production equipment, digital media, and the completion of in process 
projects. 

 
(b) Eligibility:  All city of Lawndale residents and Lawndale based non-profit 

organizations are eligible for a grant. 
 
(c) Application Process: 
 

(i) All persons, desiring a Lawndale Cable CommissionCity Council grant may 
apply by completing a grant application form including a budget worksheet and 
statement of compliance form.  

 
(ii) Grants will be reviewed on a first come, first served basis. The Lawndale Cable 

CommissionCity Council reserves the right to make any reasonable conditions 
or changes to an applicant's grant including, but not limited to, financial 
compensation for programming that may generate revenues from distribution.  

 
(iii) Producers applying for a grant are limited to one grant per fiscal year. The 

maximum total value allowable of any grant awarded by the Lawndale Cable 
Commission City Council is $4,000.00. If a grant in excess of $4,000.00 is 



Council Policy No. 97-11 
Page 7 

considered warranted, the Lawndale Cable CommissionCity Council should 
review such requests with staff and provide a recommendation to the City 
Council on its merits. 

 
(d) Timeline: 
 

(i) Community access grants issued from September through January must be used 
towards programming that is completed by June of the same year. 

 
(ii) Community access grants issued from February through August must be used 

toward programming that is completed by December of the same year. 
 

(e) Incomplete Grant Projects:  Incomplete grant projects shall become the property of 
the Lawndale City CouncilCable Commission. All copyright privileges to the project or 
program shall be granted to the Lawndale City Council Cable Commission for 
continuation or completion of the project. 

 
(f) Use of City Facilities and Equipment:  Grant recipients and other authorized persons 

who wish to use City facilities and/or equipment shall be accompanied by Cable 
Division technical staff member. The Cable Television Supervisor may refuse to permit 
any person to use any facilities and/or equipment at his/her discretion, based on the 
person's failure to demonstrate responsible behavior or ability to safely and properly 
handle equipment. 

 
(g) Minors (Persons under the age of 18):  Minors using facilities and/or equipment must 

have on file a signed parental consent form. The parent or guardian who signs the form 
assumes responsibility for any liability arising from the minor's granted use of facilities 
and/or equipment. 

 
(h) Refusal of Services:  The City reserves the right to suspend or revoke the privilege of 

any user who appears to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs; interferes with the 
orderly conduct of business; refuses to cooperate with or in any way mistreats City of 
Lawndale employees, interns or volunteers; misuses equipment; fails to return 
equipment on time; represents to any other party that he/she, or any other person 
involved, represent the City or the Lawndale City Council Cable Commission in any 
manner; fails to sign and adhere to the terms of the statement of compliance; and/or has 
violated any law, city rule or regulation or any of the policies or guidelines herein. 

 
(i) Authorizations:  All grant recipients are responsible for the content of their programs 

and for obtaining all rights necessary to cablecast any program material on the system. 
All recipients are responsible for providing proof that they have obtained in writing all 
necessary approvals, clearances, licenses, or the like, for the use of any program 
material which the recipient proposes for cablecast, including but not limited to 
approvals by broadcast stations, networks, sponsors, music licensing organizations, 
copyright owners, performers' representatives, all persons appearing in or referred to in 
programs material, and approvals that may be necessary to transmit program material 
over the cable television system. 

 



Council Policy No. 97-11 
Page 8 

(j) Insurance:  Grant recipients are required to obtain insurance to the satisfaction of the 
City. However, the City Manager or his or her designee shall have the authority to 
waive insurance requirements when appropriate.  

 
(k) Indemnification:  Grant recipients must agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 

the Lawndale City CouncilCable Commission, the City of Lawndale and its employees 
and agents, against any claims arising out of any use of City facilities or equipment, or 
other production activities, or use of program material that is being cablecast or any 
breach of the Policies and Guidelines, including by not limited to any claims in the 
nature of libel, slander, invasion of privacy or publicity rights, non-compliance with 
applicable laws and unauthorized use of copyrighted material. All grant recipients 
should note that he/she may be criminally or civilly liable for performing or producing 
such material which is cablecast. 

 
VII. FORMAT REQUIREMENTS 
 

(a) Digital Media Preferred:  The City prefers that all programming submitted be supplied 
in digital format, including DVDs. Programming submitted on VHS may be accepted, 
at the City's option, however, other formats will be the responsibility of the producer to 
transfer to an approved format. 

 
(b) Length of Programs: 
 

(i) Programs scheduled in half hour time slots must not exceed 28 minutes. 
 
(ii) Programs scheduled in hour time slots must not exceed 58 minutes. 
 
(iii) Programs exceeding 58 minutes will be scheduled according to available 

channel air time. 
 
(iv) Programs under 28 minutes or between 28 - 58 minutes will be considered "filler 

programming" and may be scheduled less frequently. 
 

(c) Labeling:  All media submitted must be clearly labeled with title, date of production, 
name, address and telephone number of user. Both the media and container must be 
labeled. 

 
(d) Technical Quality:  The City reserves the right to reject any proposed programming 

which, in its discretion, do not meet technical standards (see attachment entitled 
"VIDEO MEDIA TECHNICAL STANDARDS"). 

 
(e) Reservation of Rights:  The City reserves the right to schedule or reschedule programs 

or require any viewer discretion tags at the beginning and end of each program that the 
City deems appropriate. 

 
VIII. PROGRAMMING RESTRICTIONS 
 

(a) Political/Campaign:  Lawndale Community Television is not intended to be used as a 
political forum by an individual or group, nor as a mechanism for building exclusive 



Council Policy No. 97-11 
Page 9 

support for a particular person or issue. As such, neither political advocacy nor 
promotional announcements for political and campaign events or activities are 
permitted. Political programming that only provides factual or educational information 
on a ballot issue affecting a state, city or county government service or ballot issue 
directly affecting city residents shall be permitted. 

 
(b) Endorsements or Solicitation:  At all times Lawndale Community Television shall 

remain non-commercial. No use of the channel for any personal gain shall be permitted.  
 
(c) Sponsorship:  Any program which was funded, sponsored or underwritten, in part or in 

full, by any individual, business or non-profit organization may credit that support in 
the following manner: "This program was made possible with funds provided by 
__________ (name of sponsor)." Further sponsorship recognition is subject to the 
Lawndale Community Television Sponsorship Policy. 

 
(d) Promotional Announcements:  Promotional announcements for City-sponsored 

events, or events or services provided or organized by a non-profit organization, will be 
permitted on the Lawndale's Community Television. All other promotional 
announcements shall not be permitted unless in accordance with subsection (c) above. 

 
(e) Lottery:  No programming containing advertisement or information regarding any 

lottery shall be aired. 
 
(f) Alcohol or Tobacco:  No material that can be construed as promoting alcohol or 

tobacco shall be aired. 
 
(g) Indecency, Obscenity and Defamation:  No sexual, obscene, indecent, defamatory or 

offensive material or language shall be aired. Community standards of good taste will 
be adhered to at all times.  

 
(h) Copyright and Trademark:  No copyrighted or trademarked material shall be aired 

unless clearances for use have been obtained, and written proof of such clearance is 
provided to the Cable Television Division. The producers submitting programs to be 
aired shall hold the City harmless in any case of copyright or trademark infringement.  

 
(i) Other Prohibited Material:  No material which constitutes libel, slander, invasion of 

privacy or publicity rights, or unfair competition shall be aired. 
 
(j) FCC Guidelines:  Use of the channel shall be governed by the operating procedures as 

set forth herein and by the rules of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) as 
they may apply to operations of the City's channels. 

 
(k) Compliance with All Laws:  No programming shall be permitted that is not in 

compliance with any applicable federal, state or local law, code or regulation. 
 

IX. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES 
 

(a) Applicability:  Any person or persons wishing to protest decisions made by the Cable 
Television Supervisor or City Manager (i.e. in regards to playback scheduling, 



Council Policy No. 97-11 
Page 10 

production scheduling, refusal of program due to content or length, or any conflict 
arising in question to the Lawndale City Council Cable Commission rules and 
regulations) may file a grievance and request a hearing before the Lawndale City 
CouncilCable Commission. 

 
(b) Protest Procedure(s): 
 

(i) Any applicant wishing to file a protest must submit a detailed report regarding 
the complaint, along with any Lawndale City Council Cable Commission forms 
involved with the dispute, to the Cable Television Supervisor or City Manager 
no later than fourteen (14) calendar days from the date of the decision being 
grieved. All protests must be received no later than two (2) weeks prior to an 
upcoming Lawndale City Council Cable Commission meeting. The applicant 
will then be placed on the following meeting's agenda at which time the 
applicant may present his/her said case. Based upon all evidence in the record, 
the City Council Cable Commission shall render its decision. If the applicant 
wishes to appeal the Commission decision to the City Council, he or she shall do 
so within fourteen (14) days of the date of the decision. Said appeal shall be 
heard at the next City Council meeting in compliance with all public meeting 
notice requirements. The City Council's decision shall be final. 

 
(ii) If any protest is received by the Cable Television Supervisor prior to airing of 

any program that is the subject of protest, the program may still be shown at the 
discretion of the Cable Television Supervisor and subject to a consensus by the 
City Manager or the City Manager's designee. If deemed appropriate by the City 
Manager or the City Manager's designee, an emergency Lawndale City Council 
meeting may be called to render a decision. The Lawndale City Council shall 
render the final decision.  

 
X. CITY LIABILITY AND RIGHTS 
 

(a) Editing:  The City reserves its right to edit any program in accordance with the 
guidelines and policies herein. Alternatively, the City's Cable Television Division may 
notify a producer of all program portions in need of editing and request said editing be 
completed. The producer will then have the option of making all specified changes or 
declining to have the program aired. 

 
(b) Accuracy:  The City does not guarantee the accuracy of the information aired on 

Lawndale Community Television. No agents, employees or officials of the City, shall 
be held liable, and shall be held harmless, for the cablecast of inaccurate or incorrect 
information. 

 
(c) Statement of Compliance:  Any programming not produced by the City of Lawndale 

or its representatives must fill out a statement of compliance to ensure that the content 
meets the requirement set forth in this document. Failure to submit a statement of 
compliance shall result in a delay of airing or revocation of approval. Statement of 
compliance forms may be obtained from the Cable Television Division.  

 



Council Policy No. 97-11 
Page 11 

XI. OWNERSHIP, STORAGE AND COPIES 
 

(a) Ownership:  The ownership and copyright for any program produced by the City of 
Lawndale shall be held by the City of Lawndale. 

 
(b) Storage:  Recordings of public meetings and other events will be stored by Lawndale as 

required by the City's record retention policy. These copies shall not be considered the 
official record of any meeting and the City shall not be held liable for the inadvertent 
erasure or omissions of any portion of such recordings. 

 
(c) Copies:  Copies of recordings of public meetings may be purchased from the City 

Clerk's office. Copies of all other events may be purchased from the Cable Television 
Division. The cost to purchase a copy of a recording shall be determined by the 
schedule of fees adopted by the City Council, as may be amended from time to time.  

 



Council Policy No. 97-11 
Page 12 

LAWNDALE COMMUNITY TELEVISION 
VIDEO MEDIA TECHNICAL STANDARDS 

All video media submitted for cable-casting on Lawndale Community Television must adhere to the 
following standards: 

A. Video Media Formats – All analog tapes must be NTSC 3/4" U-Matic cassettes or VHS masters.
All digital videotapes must be DVCPRO25, DVCPRO50 or DV format. Standard DVDs are also
acceptable. Digital video files may be submitted on disc or transmitted electronically. Suitable
digital video formats can include but are not limited to Apple Quicktime (.mov), Microsoft
Windows Video Media (.wvm) and Advanced Video Interleaved (.avi), Adobe Flash Video (.flv),
Google Video Media (.gvi), DivX Media Format (.dvix), MPEG2 (.mp2), MPEG4 (.mp4),  and
H26L Series Video files.

B. Video Media Technical Specifications – All analog video submitted must meet the following
specifications:
1. Active analog video should be between 7.5 and 100 IRE.
2. Chrominance must not exceed 80%.
3. Sync pulse should be -40 IRE.
4. Sync and blanking portions of the video should be the RS170A standard compliant.

All video (including digital video) must meet the following specifications: 
5. Thirty to sixty (30-60) seconds NTSC color bars and 0db 1khz test tone;
6. Slate: title of program, program length, producer’s name and contact information, date

edited, and relevant engineering information such as type of time code if any, number and
type of audio channels;

7. Ten second countdown with the last two seconds consisting of black;
8. Program Material;
9. At least ten (10) seconds sync/black following end of program.

C. All video media submitted must be of good quality with no damage, loss of sync, excessive or
significant video/audio dropouts. Video media must be housed in an appropriate case to prevent
damage to the media.

D. Video media and media cases must be properly labeled with the following information.

1. Program Title
2. Program Length - 00:00 (minutes and seconds)
3. Name of user, owner, institution or organization and return address
4. Production date

Media not meeting the above standards may be rejected. 



COUNCIL POLICY 

SUBJECT: 
Lawndale Community Television Sponsorship 
Policy 

POLICY NO.:  99-11 DATE ADOPTED: 
6/20/11 
7/15/2019 

AUTHORITY: 
Resolution No. CC-1106-047 
Resolution No. CC-1907-037 

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of the Lawndale Community Television Sponsorship Policy is to provide a set of 
objective criteria to be applied uniformly in determining the appropriateness of sponsorship, donation 
or advertising arrangements between an agency, group or individual and the Lawndale City Council. 

POLICY: 

I. DEFINITIONS

City:  The City of Lawndale. 

Donor:  An agency, group or individual giving money, materials or services with no expectation of 
recognition or consideration in return.  The City may choose to provide recognition to donors.  Such 
recognition shall be solely determined, controlled and prescribed by the City.  Examples of such 
recognition may include, but are not limited to, letters of appreciation and certificates of 
commendation. 

Lawndale Cable Usage Corporation (LCUC): The non-profit, public benefit corporation which is 
intended to receive and allocate funds and other consideration to promote and develop local usage of 
the cable system, including programming development. 

Lawndale CommunityTV:  Primarily a bulletin board with computer generated graphic sequence or 
video and audio-based information as well as government access programs financed primarily with 
general or other City funds or monies received by the Corporation or City, and planned, organized and 
scheduled by the City. 

Lawndale Community Television (LCTV) Channel:  A six megahertz (MHz) frequency band, which is 
capable of carrying either one standard video signal, a number of audio, digital or other non-video 
signals or some combination of such signals, for the purpose of providing many forms of information 
or entertainment to the community.  This may also include future technological advancements or 
conditions that warrant the distribution of the signal, in part or as a whole, through the internet or other 
delivery medium at the discretion of the City. The two channels have been branded "Lawndale City 
TV" and "Lawndale Community TV." 

Lawndale Community Television (LCTV) Programming:  Television based program or program series 
financed primarily with general or other City funds or monies received by the Corporation or City, and 
planned, organized and scheduled by the City, and which includes televised City Council meetings, 

EXHIBIT D



Council Policy No. 99-11 
Page 2 

Planning Commission meetings; meetings of other bodies governed by the Ralph M. Brown Act, 
elections results coverage or other programming which is intended to televise the functioning of the 
various legislative bodies of the City, the Lawndale Redevelopment Agency, the Lawndale Housing 
Authority, the Corporation or such other subordinate or inferior legislative bodies of the City. Further, 
LCTV Programming includes City produced or supported television programming such as sporting 
event coverage or highlights, community event coverage or highlights, City solicited programming, 
educational or informational programming. 
 
Lawndale Community Television (LCTV) Review Committee:  The Lawndale Community Television 
(LCTV) Review Committee is composed of the City Manager (and/or his designee) and the Chair of 
the Cable Commission Media and Technology Advisory Committee.  The purpose of the "Review 
Committee" is to review and approve sponsorships or to make recommendations to the Lawndale City 
Council for sponsorship approval or denial. 
 
Sponsor:  An agency, business, group, individual or IRS certified non-profit entity providing either 
funds to offset the cost and/or services or materials in support of LCTV Channel, or program or 
program series. Sponsorship does not authorize the agency, group or individual to plan, organize, 
conduct or influence the City television programming operation, but shall allow recognition consistent 
with this Sponsorship Policy and which has been recommended by staff and approved by the Review 
Committee and/or the City Council. 
 
Sponsor Paid Advertising:  Permitted sponsorship features arranged for an agency, group or individual 
that provides money in exchange for recognition as part of an approved sponsorship of a specified 
community television program, program series, LCTV channel or LCTV Bulletin Board.  Sponsor 
produced advertising may be authorized if it adheres to this policy and meets all technical 
specifications. Such advertising is subject to approval from the Review Committee and/or the City 
Council. 
 
Supported Television Programs (Co-Sponsored):  Programming which the City jointly produced with 
another agency, group or individual to serve the community for a public purpose including, but not 
limited to, television programs that the City would directly finance or operate if there were adequate 
resources available to do so. 
 
II. PERMITTED SPONSORSHIP 
 
The City shall seek and approve sponsorships and/or donations for Lawndale Community Television 
Programming (LCTV) that are consistent with the subject, purpose and audience of the program and 
recognize the sponsor in accordance with this policy, the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) 
Standards for underwriting or sponsorship credits (FCC 86-161) and Public Broadcasting System 
(PBS) Funding Standards and Practices: Overall Appearance and Effect of Credits.  No sponsorship is 
available for any legislative body or public meetings.   
 
The sponsorship features allowed by this policy include, but are not necessarily limited to, the 
following: 
 

• Logograms or slogans which identify but do not promote; 
• Location information, telephone numbers and web pages; 
• Value neutral descriptions of a product line or service; 
• Brand and trade names and product or service listings; and 



Council Policy No. 99-11 
Page 3 

• Visual depictions of specific products.

Further, any program which is funded, sponsored or underwritten, in part or in full, by any individual, 
business or non-profit organization may be verbally recognized in the following manner: "This 
program was made possible with funds provided by ___________(name of sponsor)." 

In the event it shall be become necessary, the City Manager shall establish administrative procedures to 
implement or clarify this policy. The administrative procedures shall be consistent with all appropriate 
provisions of the Lawndale Municipal Code, the Bylaws of the Lawndale Cable Usage Corporation, 
the Lawndale Community Television Policies and Guidelines, any relevant contracts of the Lawndale 
Cable Usage Corporation, and state and federal law. 

III. PROHIBITED ADVERTISING

All sponsorship advertising is subject to the following prohibitions: 

A. Political Content: To avoid any appearance of partiality, or the appearance of the impermissible
use of public resources, the City will not accept advertising with political advocacy.  For
purposes of this policy, advertising with political advocacy is any advertising involving
promotional announcements for political issues, or candidates, including but not limited to
candidate advertising and ballot issue advocacy.  However, informational only, political
advertising consistent with the Lawndale Community Television Policies and Guidelines, shall
be permitted.

B. Sexual Content: To protect the public, and especially minors, the City will not accept
advertising that contains sexual content. For purposes of this policy, advertising with sexual
content is any advertising that contains depictions or descriptions that are obscene or lewd as
defined in California Penal Code section 311 or applicable federal law or which would be
deemed indecent in accordance with current case law.  Advertising with sexual content is also
any advertising promoting products or services involving obscene, lewd or indecent content or
conduct or depicts specified anatomical areas or specified sexual activities as defined by
section 17.94.010 of the Lawndale Municipal Code.

C. Tobacco Products: Because the use of tobacco products has a detrimental effect on public
health, the City will not accept advertising promoting tobacco products.

D. Alcohol Products: Because of the abuse of alcohol has a detrimental effect on public health and
safety, City will not accept advertising promoting alcohol products.

IV. PROCEDURE

A. Review Process:  A sponsorship proposal must be completed on a City approved Television
Sponsorship form and submitted to the Cable Television Supervisor for review.  The Television
Sponsorship form must include the following:

1. Identification of program, series, channel selected for sponsorship;
2. Name, address and telephone number of agency, group or individual, including contact

person;
3. Type of sponsorship being requested;
4. Monetary value of funding or estimated value of service being provided; and
5. Cost to the City, if any, to administer the program.



Council Policy No. 99-11 
Page 4 

 The Cable Television Supervisor shall receive and review applications for sponsorship 
and make a recommendation to accept or deny the same.  The LCTV "Review Committee" 
shall review the recommendations as well as the applications including the financial 
contribution offered.  
 Based upon the criteria listed herein, the Review Committee shall either accept or deny 
the proposed sponsorship, or the Review Committee may determine that an individual 
application requires further review by the City Council.  In the event that said sponsorship 
warrants further review, the proposed sponsorship shall be put before the City Council at its 
next regularly scheduled meeting.   
 Upon approval of a sponsorship application, the sponsorship opportunity may be 
renewed annually without further review unless there are significant changes to the sponsorship 
applicant, program, series, channel, facility, or this policy. 

 
B. Inventory:  The Cable Television Supervisor shall establish and maintain a database of 

programs, series, channels, facilities and services that may be eligible for sponsorship.  This 
inventory shall include a listing of existing sponsors, time frame designated for sponsor 
participation, and sponsorship level designation.  

 
C. MOU or Contract Requirements:  Depending on the complexity or dollar value involved in a 

sponsorship, the City Manager may require a memorandum of understanding (MOU) or formal 
contract with the sponsor requiring approval of the City Council.  Unless expressly provided 
otherwise by the City Council, the MOU or contract shall contain these items: 

 
1. An agency, group or individual desiring to sponsor a program must demonstrate that its 

purpose is consistent with the City's mission to enhance service to the community. 
2. Sponsors may provide funds or pay for facilities, equipment, supplies, staff services, 

security services, consultation, public relations services, and/or materials. 
3. The sponsor shall not directly seek to make a profit from the sponsorship.  However, 

building community interest on a subject or gaining professional exposure is acceptable. 
4. The City must be appropriately represented and/or acknowledged in any publicity or 

public announcements for a television program, series, channel or facility.  The City 
Manager or designee shall review and approve all publicity such as media releases, 
posters, flyers, etc. 

5. The approval of a sponsorship project or program shall in no way obligate the City to 
continue the arrangement in the future. 

6. Compliance with all appropriate provisions of the Lawndale Municipal Code, Lawndale 
Community Television Policies and Guidelines, , the Bylaws of the Lawndale Cable 
Usage Corporation, any relevant contracts of the Lawndale Cable Usage Corporation, 
state and federal law and Public Broadcasting System (PBS) Funding Standards and 
Practices: Overall Appearance and Effect of Credits. 

 
V. OTHER 
 
A. DONATIONS:  All donations for events, activities or facilities must be in accordance with the 

City's existing practices for receiving donations.  Donors may be recognized within the 
guidelines of this policy. 

B. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS: The City retains the right to not offer particular programming 
for sponsorships by entities which would be incompatible with LCTV operations and the City's 
mission or policies and procedures. 



Council Policy No. 99-11 
Page 5 

C. AMENDMENTS:  This Policy may be amended by a resolution of the City. 
 



12







13



14



15


	19-07-15 reg.agn
	01. Ord. Reading
	02. Contract - Site Assessment and Soil (UST)
	03. Final Parcel Map No. 73938
	04. Quarterly Investment Report
	05. Investment Policy
	06. Claims
	07. Warrant Registers
	08. 19-06-17.min
	09. Fee Update - No Action
	10. 2nd Amendment - Solid Waste RFP Consulting
	11. Cable Commission Dissolution and creation of MTAC
	12. League of CA Cities Annual Conference
	13. CC Attendance
	14. CS - Eval
	15. CS - Labor

	Back to Agenda: 


